both of which have -- there's plenty of time still to provide maps in those -- in that
conversation. Certainly need some hard looks by all of us, just because of what
Supervisors Dawson and Mr. Titla are talking about. And there are -- and there is time
there to provide maps to the state in that conversation."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Does that -- go ahead, Steve."

Resident, Steve Titla: "Yeah, sorry, | have a cold here, so, I'm trying to speak. But
anyway, thank you for letting me comment on the maps again. Shirley, your comments
are -- were very well given, and | think has to be given a lot of consideration, so I'll relate
it to the tribe about your comments."

"With regard to the Tonto Apache map, we don't want to offend our brothers up there,
so we might have to talk to them on the issue and see what they have to say, because
there are the -- a lot of relations down here, you know, from Tonto to San Carlos
Apache. They were moved out of Tonto Apache, as you know, back in the late 1800s
when they -- when our U.S. Government said they wanted to concentrate the Apaches,
they were moved from Tonto down to Old San Carlos, and then they went back. So
there's a lot of people from down here that are related to the people up there, so a lot of
relations there, so we don't want to offend our relatives and everything, so we might
need to talk to them and everything. But good comments, Shirley. Thank you."
Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Thank you."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "So, Mr. Titla, what we would assume if there are no maps
submitted by this Friday --"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Uh-huh."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "- would that be too short of a deadline? | mean, we're
running out of time. | mean, | would suggest that if you -- if the tribe wants to submit,
they should have it by Friday. Otherwise, | think Shirley's comments and Tommie's
agreement that | think all three maps do identify the concerns of the Native Americans
within Gila County, and if you guys could work on that, that would be even - might even
be a better resolution to the problem.

(Audio ends) (Second CD)

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Before we move to -- at the state legislation, do we need to
talk about the college districts? | think we should discuss it a little bit. I'm -- | know
they're probably not as high priority on the discussion as the supervisorial districts are,
but | think we should have some comment from the consultants as to what's going on
with the college districts and --"

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Do you want Tony to bring up the detail on the
maps?"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Yeah, that's right."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "And then we can --"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Let's do that first, Tony, I'm sorry."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "-- do it on all six and talk about the college ones
as he goes through those?"

19|Page



Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Yeah. We'll -- we're going to bring up all six maps one at a
time, and Tony, go ahead."

Consultant, Tony Sissons: "Okay. Well, I'm going to start with the, let's see, just
taking them in the order that they're listed on the sheet. | would be bringing up the
Tonto Apache proposal first. Yeah, it seems to show pretty clearly."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "And this is without any adjustments at all."

Consultant, Tony Sissons: "lt's as --"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "This is just their submission, correct?"

Consultant, Tony Sissons: "Right. Right. There -- actually there were two technical
adjustments that we made because as they submitted the map, they did not have -- |
don't know if you can see the area that I'm pointing to with the mouse. That is actually
part of the — of - that's reservation territory that is kind of part of the Christmas precinct,
and they had left that out. There's no population at all in that area, so we just simply
added it so that the, you know, the tribal area would be complete and then actually up in
the Tonto Apache's -- in the -- the precinct that they are in, they moved into the -- into
District 3, but unfortunately the actual reservation territory they left in District 2,
technically, but that's really because of the mapping software that they were using, the
on-line map that we'd put there, they hadn't zoomed in close enough to notice that
they'd left their tribal area in District 2. So we went -- we knew what was intended. We
made those fixes, but we didn't do any other adjustments. So there's really not a lot to
talk about about this plan in terms of any adjustments that we made, so I'm going to
move to the next plan.”

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Okay. Can we look at the detail --"

Consultant, Tony Sissons: "Oh."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "-- in the Globe area?"

Consultant, Tony Sissons: "Yes. Okay."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "l think it's just important that we note how many
changes have been made in the Globe area, because there are some changes."
Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Uh-huh."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "The red line are the current districts, whereas the
colors are the proposed.”

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "So --"

Consultant, Tony Sissons: "Right."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "So it splits the Globe area district almost in half?"
Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Yeah."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Or takes two of the larger --"

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Uh-huh."

Consultant, Tony Sissons: "Right."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "And then you added that leg to the right of the red bold.
What is that -- the --"

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Globe 67"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "No."

Consultant, Tony Sissons: "Well --"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "In District 3, right above east Globe, that pink area that's
added in."
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Consultant, Tony Sissons: "This right here?"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Yes."

Consultant, Tony Sissons: "Okay. That's -- | mean, when you look at your precinct
map, this area and this area are all part of the east Globe precinct. However, when we
created the on-line mapping system, we divided some of the larger precincts so there
would be more -- there were pieces for people to move around on the map. And, as it
happens, these were sort of represented as different, you know, sort of east Globe A
and east Globe B, so to speak."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Actually, that one is Globe -- the part that comes
down is Globe 1, but east Globe, yes, was broken."

Consultant, Tony Sissons: "Right."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "For purposes of the division, yeah."
Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "And that was just to get the population numbers in balance,
or --"

Consultant, Tony Sissons: "Well, no. | mean, that wasn't one of the more recent
adjustments. This was the way the mapping system, the on-line mapping system, was
set up, just to give more moveable pieces because, you know, | think you have, what,
39 precincts? Forty precincts?"

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Thirty-nine."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Thirty-nine. And | think we created kind of 51 or 52
moveable pieces so that there'd just be a higher resolution -- geographic resolution for
people to be making choices and moving neighborhoods around."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "So how much more detail do you have there? Can you
zero in more on that --"

Consultant, Tony Sissons: "Well --"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "-- district or not?"

Consultant, Tony Sissons: "Let me do this. I'm getting to --"

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "What else are you looking for, Shirley?"
Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Where -- where he's asking on that east Globe, are we
talking -- does that go, then, into the Copper Hills area and stuff?"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Let me pull up the streets."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Yeah."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "On this map. Okay."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "l don't know how you keep track of all this stuff."
Consultant, Tony Sisson: "l don't. I'm just doing this at random."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Oh, good."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "He just hopes it works."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Fingers crossed.”

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Can we get a dart board?"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Okay. I've added streets to the map. Does this give you
enough, in a -- to get your bearings? And maybe the map up on the larger screen, |
don't know if -- which is clearer for you to look at.”

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "That's Proper --"

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Is that the highway?"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "-- Copper Canyon? Copper Canyon Road?"
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Unidentified Speaker: "(Indiscernible - away from mic **4:58:22)."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Okay."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Right there. What is that dividing line right --"
Consultant, Tony Sisson: "What, this line right here?"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "No. We know Highway 60."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Right."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "But the northern part."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Keep going. Keep going."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Okay."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Right up there."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Right there?"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Yeah. That's Copper --"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Well -- oh. That line right there?"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "That must be Copper --"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "That is whatever your current precinct boundary is."
Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Copper Hills Road."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Yeah."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Uh-huh."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Okay, so that -

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Copper Hills Road."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Yeah."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "lt's Copper Hills Road."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Okay. Right."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "So it goes around the back side?"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Yeah."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "(Indiscernible **4:58:49) off it takes a big chunk out of
Globe."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "You're talking about the Nosgroff Hill (phonetic
**4:58:54) --"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Yeah."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "-- take off."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Right."

Unidentified Speaker: "Uh-huh."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "l mean, my perception is that as people were using this
on-line mapping tool, you know, street names were not available on that tool, so --"
Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Right."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "-- so, in essence, they were kind of creating shapes at the,
sort of a gross level, not a fine tuning level, and were paying more attention to the total
populations and the racial proportions within those shapes that were made available to
them. So | don't think anybody said shall we use Copper Hills Road or shall we use
some adjacent road. It -- that detail was not available to the tribe as they were doing
this."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Okay. And in between Globe 3 and Globe 4, what is that
divider?"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Zoom in closer."
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Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "That -- yeah."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Okay."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "That street."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "What is the divider there? "

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "I'm just going to turn on, let's see. Streets. Okay. Bear
with me a second. | --"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Okay."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Okay. I've added streets, and | see Oak Street and then a
little bit of Cedar right here. Oak and Cedar are the two major streets involved on that
boundary."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Could you go -- move it up?"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Okay."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Or move the map down?"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Right. So, we're going this way."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Right."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Okay."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "With all those internal changes like that, what is that going
to entail for --"

Unidentified Speaker: "Lots of work."

Unidentified Speaker: "Yeah."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "-- the recorder's office? | mean is --"

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Well, right now the precinct boundary right there
hasn't changed."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Those are the same."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "But they'll have to change the -- the district would
have to change, yes."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Uh-huh."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Uh-huh."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "And that will be -- give me an idea, what's -- how much
time frame is -- if we were doing -- if we did something like this."

Unidentified Speaker: "(Indiscernible **5:01:12) on this? Probably about a month."
Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "A whole month?"

Unidentified Speaker: "Uh-huh."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Which is why we need it approved in December
so they have lots of time to work on it."

Unidentified Speaker: "If we're talking congressional, legislative, college,
supervisorial, that'll take us --"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Couple of months?"

Unidentified Speaker: "Yes."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "And until that's completed, you can't - a candidate can't
even go out and begin his petition drive, could he?"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Unh-unh."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Not unless they know where to run."
Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "He could on a general basis, but --"

Unidentified Speaker: "As long -- yeah."
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Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Okay."

Unidentified Speaker: "We ran some numbers on a supervisorial districts."
Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Okay."

Unidentified Speaker: "And for the Moody one, we're going to have to change
approximately 2,200 voters. For the Freeze --"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Feasor."

Unidentified Speaker: "-- is it Freesor? "

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Uh-huh."

Unidentified Speaker: "Feasor. Approximately 6,400. And then for the Tonto, about
6,200 voters."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Okay."

Unidentified Speaker: "We haven't done the college district boundaries. But that's
what we're going to be working on today."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "But, you'd probably see those kinds of numbers?"
Unidentified Speaker: "Yes."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: Okay. Allright. Let's go to the next map.

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "To the next map?"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Yeah."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Okay."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Justto --"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "All right."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Tommie, any questions up there? I'm sorry."
Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "No, not so far. It's just very interesting to look at the
detail. | haven't either."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Okay. Any questions down here? Okay. Let's go."
Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Well, | didn't mean to go all the way out."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "That's an interesting map."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Okay. This would be, | think the Kristine Feasor map.
And, as you can see from this map, the -- District 3 has been extended over to pick up
the precinct that does contain the Tonto Apache tribe, that being, | think, Payson 2
precinct, which is this one right here. So --"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "And what is that north line right straight up from where
-- no, over to your right now."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "I'm left handed, so | got to translate."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Over. Over east."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "Shirley, | think --"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Right there."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "-- they're Zane Grey 1 or 2."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Yeah. Itis."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Okay. Rightthere. Yeah."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "| think Zane Grey was broken in half for this."
Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "l see."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Right. And that dividing line that we put in for the mapping
tool is really the alignment of Highway 260."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "So you're splitting the Zane Grey district?"
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Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Uh-huh."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Yes, precinct, right."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "l thought one of the -- one of your restrictions was to limit
the amount of that --"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Try not to do --"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "You want to answer that, Bruce?"

Consultant, Bruce: "Sure. | think that, you know, every jurisdiction has your traditional
redistricting criteria. And let's presume that one of yours is not splitting precincts. Every
single traditional redistricting criteria that you have is subordinated to the Voting Rights
Act so that if you need - let's presume that you need to do that to comply with one
person, one vote under the U.S. Constitution and the Voting Rights Act. If you do, then
that takes a back seat to the federal requirements. Now, I'm not saying that that's
necessary for this, but all redistricting criteria at the state and local level take a back
seat to the Voting Rights Act and the U.S. Constitution. So if you have to split a precinct
or split a municipality, for example, to comply with the federal requirements, then you
have to do that."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Okay."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "In this circumstance, this was just one of those situations
where we found a way to divide a precinct along a logical, you know, very recognizable
line just to have more bits and pieces to move around on the map. Recognizing that,
you know, at the end of this process involving, you know, the supervisorial, community
college, congressional and legislative lines, a certain amount of conforming precincts to
newly adopted lines is necessary anyway. And generally, jurisdictions will include
changes to their precincts in their pre-clearance package along with the request for
pre-clearance of the supervisorial and community colleges districts."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Could you drop just down -- come in on the pink? Left.
Up. Go back up. Right there."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Right."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "That detail."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "In this area?"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "No. Down. Where you were. Right there. No, there."
Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Okay."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "That's a new addition. What is that called?"

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "That's Sierra Ancha."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Sierra Ancha precinct, which before | -- well, | really just
added this line right here, which is reservation boundary, so that -- because right now,
Sierra Ancha is half reservation and half non-reservation. To the extent that | thought
that folks may want to, you know, truly observe reservation boundaries in this
redistricting process, | just kind of found a way to make every, yeah, well, to afford the
ability to exactly replicate the edges of the tribal areas in the mapping."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Could you go into that section right where you're at --"
Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Yeah."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "-- for detail?"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Okay."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Not much there."
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Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "What?"

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Not much there."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Yeah."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Well, still. Let me turn on streets. Let's see, now.
Highlighter. So, hmm. Let me darken up those street names so they're a little more
readable. Okay. When one looks at the federal mapping data base, one often sees
strange names like unnamed bad road. | don't know if that has any significance locally,
but it --"

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Jeep trail."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Right."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Rawls Creek Ranch (phonetic), right?"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Uh-huh."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Okay."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "You all, that actually goes by Malicious Springs."
Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Oh."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "They thought so too."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Nice."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Thank you."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "Uh-huh."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Yep."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "So --"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "That's fine. Thank you."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Okay. Thank you."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Now go down to Globe?"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Okay. Very good. Okay. Let me get a little closer here.
One of the adjustments that we made, this area right here was not part of the plan as it
was sort of drawn by the redistricting advisory committee. This was one of our
adjustments to -- and at this point | can't really even tell you whether that adjustment
was made to increase the -- a minority proportion or whether it was made to lower the
total population deviation. It was one of those two reasons. I'm looking to see if there
are any other adjustments that we made. Well, it looks as though this area here --
well --"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "No, the area south of the line."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "No."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Yeah."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Uh-huh."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "South of the red line."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Right."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Or to the left, rather, | mean."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Hmm."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Yeah. You got --"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Over here where you have Hospital Drive and Lancaster.
That's all adjusted in."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "And --"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "The far left."
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Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Yeah."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Far left. In this direction?"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Yeah."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Everything --"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Can you --"

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "-- down below the red line."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "You want to go up, Linda? She wants -- if you would
take the --"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Move the map?"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "-- your --"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Yeah."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "-- the -- yes. Move --"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "So --"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "-- the map down."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Yeah. Okay."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Okay. Thank you."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "District 2 used to just be that narrow band that
came down."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Right."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Was just kind of that "

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Right."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Yeah."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Yeah. Let me just bump up the existing precinct
boundaries, and that maybe will make it a little easier to see. Okay. Now we're seeing
-- the blue lines are the existing precinct boundaries. So, Central Heights precinct being
right there. Okay. So this is the --"

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Claypool."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "-- Claypool 2, south of Highway 60 trimmed off and placed
into District 2. And, | mean, as we were doing this, we were just looking for kind of
effective ways of making these adjustments rather than just kind of making lots of little
nibbles here and there. We wanted to just find, you know, neighborhoods to move so
that there wouldn't be, you know, adjustments all over the map. They'd just be in
strategic places."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Can we go to the next map, Tony?"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Okay. Yeah. And that would be the TMJ, that's Tom
Moody, | think, right. TMJO01."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Is there any reason why the maps were identified when
they were presented to us? Is there a law or --"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "No."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "-- rule or regulation?"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "When we set up the on-line mapping tool, we asked
people to name their plans with their initials and a two digit map number. People went
beyond that scheme and so we've, you know, we've really just kind of called the plan
whatever the proposer named it."
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Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "What we may want to do when we go out to the
public, and you might want to consider this, is just say alternative 1, alternative 2,
alternative 3 or something like that. It's really up to you if you'd like us to do that. We
certainly can. It may make an easier discussion."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Yeah. | think it --"

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Uh-huh."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "-- personally, | think it would have been better not to have
identifying persons on it, but that's --"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "A person's name."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "-- a suggestion for the next 10 years."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Right."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "There's always something that comes up every 10 years."
Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "l think the interesting thing with this proposal, as | see
it, is the least changes. The -- of what is now in existence."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Right. As | look at it right now, I'm seeing that the, sort of
the lower half of Zane Grey precinct being moved. Let me zoom in on the Payson area
and see what changes appear there. Doesn't look as though this proposer had --
whoops -- had made any changes in that area. Let's see. What am | doing? No, I'm
not really seeing any changes in the Payson area. Just, as we said, the --"

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Zane Grey."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "-- Zane Grey. That's basically the Highway 260."
Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Uh-huh."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "So let's go down to the Globe area. Don't you wish
transportation was this fast?"

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "l -- I'm sorry, guys, but | just missed —"

Unidentified Speaker: "Did you just change maps?"

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "-- the detail in the Payson area."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "There --"

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "(Indiscernible - simultaneous speech **5:15:27)."
Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "-- it was the Zane Grey portion of that area up there that
was on the previous map is pretty much the only change that was involved in that, |
believe. Is that correct, Tony?"

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "Okay. Was all of 2 brought over?"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Unh-unh."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "That District 2, was --"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "2 --"

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "- was it modified at all?"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "No, 2 --"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "No."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "-- 2 stayed the same, | believe."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "Okay. Does it --"

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Darrel?"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Right."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "We lost the map."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "And that includes the tribe, right?"
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Consultant, Tony Sisson: "The tribe would be in District 2 under this proposal."
Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "Well, see, then we've changed something there in
precinct 2, because they're in precinct 3. What was in the original -- they're in 2 now."
Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Right."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "So now --"

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "This one doesn't --"

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "(Indiscernible **5:16:10) --"

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "-- change, yeah."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "(Indiscernible **5:16:11)."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "This map does not --"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "This one stays."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "-- change them."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "This proposal -- "

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "Aha. Okay."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Okay."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "l see it. Okay."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "It added the --"

Unidentified Speaker: "(Indiscernible **5:16:19)."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "It added the Zane Grey area to District 3 right there."
Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Right."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Right."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "But it left Tonto Apache in with 2 and not with the rest of
the Apaches, right?"

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Right."

Unidentified Speaker: "Yeah."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Right."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Right. Okay. Oops. Well, got population numbers in
there that just make it a little confusing, so I'm just going to turn those off. Oops, now
there's a blocks read layer. Streets layer."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "it's so little change."

Unidentified Speaker: "l know."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Now this one is an adjusted -- you guys have already -- you
folks have already adjusted this one, right?"

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "A little bit."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Yes."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "To some degree?"

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "A little bit."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Okay. And the first adjustment that | notice that we made
is to trim off this portion of Globe 6 --"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "All right."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "-- and add that to District 3. I'm going to make the precinct
a little bit more visible so we can see how that worked."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Okay."
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Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Okay. Yeah. So, really, just a few blocks of Globe 6 were
left in District 2, but the majority of Globe 6 was added to District 3. And | see right
where my mouse is a little bit of --"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Globe 1."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "-- Globe 1, just, you know, the very kind of tiny tip of the
triangle there. That added to District 2."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Okay. Can you go down?"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "So you want to go this way?"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Yes."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Okay."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Okay."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "And | do -- this is a change right here."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "l thought it went totally into 27"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Well, 7 and 11. Okay."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "It didn't."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "What's the detail of --"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Yeah."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "-- the divider there? Where -- that one "

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "This line here?"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Yeah."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Kelner Canyon (phonetic) Road."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Well, I'm sure the federal mapping -- oh, wait a minute.
No. No. That's actually the precinct name that showed up."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Well that's Kelner Canyon Road?"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Yeah. One of the difficulties with the federal mapping data
base is it will label on the basis of a street section. - If that truly is Kelner Canyon Road, it
would be nice if its label showed up here, but that's not the way this software works.
So, locally, is this known as Kelner Canyon Road?"

Unidentified Speaker: "Yeah."

Unidentified Speaker: "Yeah."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Okay."

Unidentified Speaker: "Yeah."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "All right."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "So that's the dividing line up to --"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "That's changing --"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Well --"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "-- dividing Globe 7 and 11."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Right."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "And 7 --"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Basically take --"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "- 11is --"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "-- taken out of Globe 7 and added to Globe 11. And again,
it would be for reasons of either population balance or a slight adjustment to the racial
proportions.”
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Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Okay. So Russell Road comes up and around -- okay. |
know where all that's at."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Yeah."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Interesting."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "I mean, which is not to say that there might not be other
ways of doing this. This was just, you know, we were asked to make adjustments to try
and fine tune these maps and these are what we came up with. There are probably an
infinite number of ways of doing this."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Okay."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "Mr. Chair, there's -- could | -- | mean, Tony, could | look
at the tweaks that you all made -- did you make tweaks on (indiscernible **5:21:30) in
the north in our precinct too?"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Yeah."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "On this map? | don't believe so."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "No."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "You might have. | don't think --"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "l don't think there were, but let's, just to be sure, go and
look at that."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "Only reason I'm asking is because one of the copies
I've got here makes it appear to have made changes."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Hmm. Okay."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Just Zane Grey."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "That's Frontier Street --"

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Unh-unh."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "-- | think, isn't it?"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "I'm not seeing any -- the -- what I'm looking at is the red
lines, and, you know, the red lines kind of bound the different colors of the districts, and
| don't see any deviation between a color edge and a red line, which would tell me that
there was a change."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "Me either on that one. | just was looking at one of the
ones that we got a copy of and it made it appear --"

Unidentified Speaker: "It shows a little yellow island all circled in red, and we're
wondering what that is."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Hmm. Oops."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Down in the southern -- down in the middle of District 27"
Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "No."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "Yeah. Right at the top of 2."

Unidentified Speaker: "At the very top of 2."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "There's no --"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "On east Granite Dells Road? That little - right there?"
Unidentified Speaker: "Okay, so you --"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "If | move in on that, you can see that it's just that kind of

situation. That's the shape of the precinct, that's the shape of the current supervisorial
district boundary."
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Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "All that's happened, | believe, is that the map that we're
looking at that's printed, it just is not actually what we're looking at on the screen right
now. It's just a little bit of a variation. But what we're looking at in the screen is what
truly is the choice, right?"

Unidentified Speaker: "Uh-huh."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "What is --"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Yes."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "-- the adjustment or the proposal.”

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "Yes. Okay. That's -- | -- we just have a little
misrepresentation in one of these copied maps, but that's all."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Well, that's (indiscernible **5:23:51)."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Hmm."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Hmm. Okay. | don't -- all right. | don't see any island."
Consultant, Tony Sisson: "I've just noticed one little tiny other adjustment.”
Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Right there."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Yeah. And that's in the Roosevelt precinct. And just a
small neighborhood there."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Crud. And you think that you made that adjustment --"
Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Well --"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "That's Sierra Ancha, that's --"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Yeah. There's -- there was really no other reason for an
adjustment other than total population balance and racial proportions, and | -- with so
many different maps, it's hard to remember --"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Yeah."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "-- what reason | was doing - or my staff was doing that."
Unidentified Speaker: "(Indiscernible - away from mic **5:25:05)."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Probably not."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "That's not --"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Just too many blocks here."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Yeah. It's already in there."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Hmm?"

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "There's no minorities there."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "lt's --"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Hmm. Now it's gone into 3."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Uh-huh."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "So that's going to go -- that adjustment's going into 37"
Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Into 3, yes."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "So that's the Roosevelt Estates area.”

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Uh-huh."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "It looks like. If I'm not mistaken."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Yeah. Itis."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Okay."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Miles and them, they're on Palo Verde, | think."
Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "l -- that's what | was going to say. So you're splitting that
residential area, that small community?"
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Unidentified Speaker: "(Indiscernible - away from mic **5:25:46)."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Right."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Unh-unh."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Well --"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "It's not split now."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Well, the red line right now, isn't that splitting it?"
Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Yeah. Javelina Trail and Stagecoach Trail. | didn't realize
those were in her district. All those problems I've been taking care of --"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Yeah."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "-- for you."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Thank you."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "All that heartache and headache."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Thank you. Thank you."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "I'll have to remember that."

Consultant, Bruce: "No, these are our adjustments at --"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "So why take them to the committee?"

Consultant, Bruce: "Right."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "One of the outcomes of this process is we're
actually going to have street level precinct maps, which we really don't have now, so
we'll be able to see - yeah — what's going on, because it's very hard for us sometimes
now."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "That's going to make it pretty --"

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Uh-huh."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "-- interesting, because right now that area's -- we've pretty
much been managing it as part of all of District 2, and -- which is --"

Consultant, Bruce: "Uh-huh."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "-—- nobody's ever -- | hope we haven't done anything illegal.
Interesting."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Yeah."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "And then there's some --"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Look at that."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Yeah."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "So --"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "So --"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "-- they're taking -- you're taking --"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Apache Trail and taking both sides of the Apache Trail
and moving it."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Correct. Okay. Hicks Road and, yeah, Burn Drive, yeah.
Way over there."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "We, you know, we tried to be geographically kind of
strategic in this, you know, trying not to, you know, where we're going to make an
adjustment, we tried to sort of unify a residential area if it did have a line, you know, an
existing line going through it."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Okay."
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Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Are you ready to start looking at community college
maps?"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Sure."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Yeah."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Do we need a five minute break for anybody? Speak or
forever hold your piece. Okay. Let's move --"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "All right."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "-- let's get the other three maps, Tony, and then we'll --"
Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Right."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: " go for a recess."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Okay. The first map we're looking at is that CC02 map.
And this --"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Big changes up north on this one, right?"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Yes. Now, | mean, some of these changes were, you
know, almost made available just by the additional geographic areas that we created for
the mapping tool, so, | mean, that may have, | mean, for instance, this line right here,
which is a major road, don't remember the name of it at the moment, but, you know, that
was a line that we added to, you know, to divide this precinct. Was it Whispering Pines
precinct? Or-- no. Well, Pine Strawberry precinct, yeah, just to give, you know, a little
bit more flexibility for people to move neighborhoods around.”

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Now these maps that you've already made the
adjustments, are you confident that they will meet the Justice Department's standards or
requirements?"

Consultant, Bruce: "Well, | think that in -- with the community college, there are fewer
Section 5 issues than the supervisory maps, and | think the biggest issue for me was in
the District 5, the -- yes, moving the -- presumably the packing issue. And | think the
one issue for the board to think about is with the District 5 population, do you want to
make more significant changes and move a larger minority voting block or minority
voting population to other districts.

"I think that certainly the redistricting committee in -- from what | understand, and |
wasn't as involved in the process as Tony, in recommending these maps, but of course
it's the board who makes whatever final determination, and if you want to draw other
maps, if you want to move 10 percent from District 5 in the college map, for example, to
District 4 just for sake of discussion, that's your opportunity. | think that, as Linda was
talking about, and certainly the way | had envisioned the work sessions, is like we
mentioned before, is bringing you a tremendous amount of information because there's
a tremendous amount for you to digest and move forward with.

But it's certainly been, in my experience, jurisdictions will, at this stage, some
jurisdictions will just create an additional map. Some jurisdictions will make significant
changes because the redistricting committee, in making the recommendations they did
and presenting their proposals to you, of course the board is the final arbiter and
decider of what the maps will be.

So from my perspective, the Justice Department federal perspective, that packing issue
in District & on one of the maps is an issue. | think that, as | said, there are fewer
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Section 5 issues because currently Section 5 -- I'm sorry — District 5 and its population
has a substantial opportunity to elect. So we're not talking about dropping that 20, 25
points of course, which arguably would be retrogressive. So that's some -- that's an
example of something that the board has to play around with, in a sense.

That, well, | mean, what do we want to do with that population? Do we want to create
another district that has a higher minority voting population than it currently has. That's
certainly -- that's the next level of discussion, analysis, and thought on the part of the
board."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Could we look at the yellow area that changes
significantly into 2 from 3? North? North. North. Right there."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Okay. Okay. Let me turn on the precincts layer so that we
can very easily see what the existing precincts look like. Okay. Now, let me just check
something here. Yeah. Okay. I'm going to hide that."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "If there's any questions from the public, just speak up. I'm
pretty enthralled with these maps. | keep forgetting to check."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Okay. So the blue lines represent the current precinct
boundaries. So as | look at this, I'm not seeing any changes. Let me just sort of float
around a little bit. Hmm. Nope. So I'm not seeing anything in the Payson area. Let me
just move to the --"

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "There's -- Tony, before you move that, go clear up to
the top. | think somebody here was saying that Payson 4 is split."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Yeah, you took some of 1 into 2."

Unidentified Speaker: "Yeah. 2 and 4 split between two districts."”

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "Yeah."

Unidentified Speaker: "lt's purple and --"

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "Right there in the middle."

Unidentified Speaker: "Right in the middie."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "(Indiscernible **5:34:26)."

Unidentified Speaker: "Right there in the middle."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "There' saying there's --"

Consultant, Bruce: "Go down to the left."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Right there?"

Unidentified Speaker: "To Payson 4."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "Right there."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Okay. Let me zoom in on that. Well, | don't see --"
Unidentified Speaker: "Oh, wait a minute -- that's. Okay."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "(Indiscernible **5:34;41). "

Unidentified Speaker: "No, | see it now."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "Okay."

Unidentified Speaker: "Now you can read it."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "Thanks, Tony."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Okay. Thank you."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "The only place it changed would be up there -- up a little bit
higher on 1. On -- took some of District 1 into District 2, it looks like."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "Yes, | think so."
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Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Oh, oh. Okay."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "To the --"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Oh, okay. Right. This area that was originally part of Pine
Strawberry precinct has been moved from District 1 into District 2. Yeah, that's
definitely a change."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "Could we look at roads there for just a minute?"
Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Yes. Okay. So let's see. Let me sort of zoom in a little bit
here, see if we can pick up -- okay. So that State Highway 87 is that new dividing line.
And it, you know, certainly does split this community, which was not split before. But
that, you know, that -- making that line available in the mapping tool was simply
because it was a state highway, a very recognizable thoroughfare, rather than, you
know, simply because it -- the -- it wasn't done to intentionally split a community. And
so0, and then down here at East Verde Estates Road, approximately, it sort of rejoins the
precinct line."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "All righty, Tony. Thanks much."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Okay. Okay. All right. Hmm. You want to visit any other
counties? All right. So where am | going? Okay. Oh, there we go. Want to go to
Maricopa County? There's got to be a way to turn that off. All right. And now I'm
looking for changes in this - in the Globe Miami area."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Use Highway 60 as your dividing point."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Hmm. Well, let me just zoom in a little closer to the
downtown. And I'm not seeing any changes here. Does anybody else see anything
that looks --"

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "That (indiscernible - away from mic **5:38:29)
there are changes from previous (indiscernible **5:38:32) is that what you're looking --"
Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Well, | don't know. You --"

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "-- (indiscernible - simultaneous speech **5:38:34)
Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Okay."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "-- the line that you can see that's red is the
previous district. It's behind the blue, so it's a little hard to see."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Right."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "It's now purple.”

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Yeah. Right."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "So you can see that actually, what is it, District 4
now come -- the green, now comes up into that area (indiscernible **5:38:59)."
Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Hmm."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Yeah. The previous line down there in the
bottom right hand corner, the red, you see that green area extends up further. Up Oak
Street. Like includes Globe 4 and 5."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Uh-huh."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Yeah. That -- that's now part of District 4, which
it wasn't before."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Over here to the right."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "It would come all the way --"
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Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Oh, over here?"

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "-- and down to Oak Street is now part of District
5."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "4?"

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "5."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "4."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "4 here."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Green is 4."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Greenis 4. 5 --"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Right."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "-- (indiscernible - away from mic **5:39:29)."
Unidentified Voice: "5 is a light, light (indiscernible - away from mic **5:39:31)."
Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Yeah."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "I'm not seeing -- what --"

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Can you see the previous line, the red line?"
Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Right underneath your hand."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Yeah."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "l --"

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "That's red and purple.”

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Right."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "That's the old district line."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Oh, oh. Okay."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "(Indiscernible **5:39:42) college --"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: Okay. I'm sorry. Yes. Right. Okay. But this appears to
be a change that the proposer of the -- the original proposer of this map made based on
the, you know, it isn't one of our later adjustments."”

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "No."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Okay. Right. Right. Okay. Okay. Any other thoughts or
comments on or questions about this map? You can see by the statistics that there are
-- there don't appear to be any sort of numerical retrogression issues with this plan, and
it's overall population deviation is 3.7 percentage points, so it's kind of within our goal
that we set for the one person one vote constitutional requirement.”

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "And there was no adjustment done to it by (indiscernible -
away from mic **5:40:59)?"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "You know, I'm --"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "A little bit."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Yeah. I'm -- | haven't seen any adjustments so far. Hmm.
Nope. Well, move on to another or?"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Sure."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Okay. And this would be map 06B. And one of my notes
to myself does indicate that there were some changes in the Payson area which appear
to be kind of as | framed this picture. Let me turn on the streets so we can see where
this is happening. Sorry. This takes a little bit of setup, but I'm getting faster,
incrementally. Come on. What — okay. The first place to look is -- oops -- in this area,
where -- Payson 7 precinct, which the north end of this precinct was West Houston
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Mesa Road. Now the area going down to West Carl Drive has been added to proposed
District 1.

And then, an adjustment -- yeah. Back out a little bit. One, two, three, four, five, six,
about eight blocks have been essentially trimmed off Payson 4, which was in District 2,
and moved into community college District 3. | think those are the only changes in the
Payson area.

So now I'll move down to the Globe Miami area and see what's happening down there.
Okay. And I'm not seeing any changes here that differ from the existing precinct or the
- this map as it was originally proposed by the member of the redistricting advisory
committee. And | think this Oak Street line is the current precinct line, | believe."
Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Uh-huh."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Okay. Okay. Move on to the next map?"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Yeah. We can move on to the next one --"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Okay."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "-- | think."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "And this is TMJ06 map. Since we're here, we'll zoom in
and see, okay. Nothing there, but | am seeing a -- an adjustment that we made right in
this area, so let me turn on the streets so that we can see which neighbors we picked
up‘ll

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Marian, would you turn the cooler up
(indiscernible - away from mic **5:47:18)."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Cold? "

Unidentified Speaker: "Tell Mike (indiscernible **5:47:23)."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Feels like the beaches of Hawaii to me."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Okay. So the blue line is the original -- or the current
precinct line, and so this -- let's see. I'm trying to find out what -- okay. So this portion
of Payson 5 taken out of District 2 and placed in District 3. This is Sleepy Hollow Drive,
really, you know, from Houston Mesa Road. That neighborhood. Okay. | don't --"
Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Questions, Tommie?"

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "They went to lunch."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "No, we have --"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Fifteen more minutes."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Okay. Yeah. I'm not seeing any other changes in the
Payson area. So --"

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "Mr. Chair, just for -- | feel compelled. | was telling you
that | had talked to somebody out of Hayden Winkelman. In this case too, they may --
the other thing he had said was that he, in making his argument, he liked either number
1 or number 2 because it did, also, what they were looking at, Bruce. Adding the
Hayden Winkelman area to the Globe Miami area just for -- just as an FYI."
Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "On the supervisory or the college?"

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "The college."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Okay."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "He -- after we talked about the supervisory, he said, for
instance, either the first or second proposal you got for the college also does what we're
talking about here. He was calling it community of interest."
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Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Okay."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "He was referring to his community of interest, or
Hayden Winkelman to go with Globe Miami, just FYL."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "So, let's see. Okay. All right. There are some other
adjustments, not so much - well, let's go look at them one at a time. Okay. Yeah. The
first of which is this area that I'm sort of outlining right now that has been taken out of
District 3 and placed into District 1, and that's from the north end of the Roosevelt
precinct. | don't know that there's, you know, much population there. But whereas the
precinct line used to run along the highway, now both sides of the highway are kind of
united in --"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "District 1."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "-- District 1. Right. That's one of the changes. Now, let
me go find the other one. Okay. Yeah. This is a change here moving this area, which
was in District 3, into District 4. Again, not a lot of population. Dripping Springs Road
up to, well, Highway 60, of course, along the north end of this new area. So, you know,
once again, these are kind of, you know, kind of minor adjustments to make the
statistics a little bit more harmonious."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Okay."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "So, and | think -- oh, no. I've got some other, I've just
noticed. Yeah. There's kind of a strip of land along the reservation edge that was
added into District 5 from District 3. And it appears to be, at least the way it's labeled
here, Old Highway 60. So this -- that area was in District 3 and is now in District 5."
Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "That's out where you're at."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "No."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "San Carlos Drive?"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Old Highway 60 is (indiscernible - away from mic
**5:53:49)."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "But it takes in some of east Globe, too."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "(Indiscernible **5:53.58)."

(Mumbling)

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Copper Canyon."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Well, as musicians say when they've played every song
that they know, that shoots the book, folks."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Okay. Well we can't take any action, but we've given --
we've - can you hear me, Marilyn? Can you hear me, Marilyn? We can't give any
action, but | think we've given you some direction, some idea of what we're looking for
and what we feel needs to be done in order to get everything in --"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Right."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "-- within line with the Justice Department so we don't have
to deal with any changes or anything. So | would encourage you, Linda, and the
consultants, to move forward and --"

Consultant, Bruce: "Right."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "-- and come back to us September 6th. Hopefully if there
are any -- September 8 -- 6th or 8th? 6th we decided, right?"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Yeah."
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Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Because that way they'd have to bring presents on the 8th,
right? Okay. So we'll doiton --"

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "Mr. Chair?"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Yes, ma'am."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "This might be a good time also to let everybody know
that we've moved the October 4th meeting to Monday, October 3rd --"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Right."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "-- at 10:00 o'clock because we're all going to be at the
county supervisor association retreat."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Yeah, so --"

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "And the public may want to know that in October when
we make our final selection it'll be on Monday, the 3rd."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Right."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "Instead of Tuesday the 4th."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Right. And there'll be a 10:00 meeting here --"
Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Uh-huh."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "-- and in Payson. I'm sure you've given them the update of
that meeting for October?"

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Not yet."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Okay. Well, so if you've already filled your calendar for
October 3rd, we're going to hope you change it because we're going to need you here
for that date. Any other comment? A comment, Mr. McDaniel?"

Resident, Mr. McDaniel: "(Indiscernible - away from mic **5:56:09) discussion on --"
Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Okay."

Resident, Mr. McDaniel: "- legislation and congressional --"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Do we want to go over this briefly on the --"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Well, is it --"

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "(Indiscernible - away from mic **5:56:18) --"
Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Oh, oh. Okay."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "I'm sorry, Tony, go ahead."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Oh, | was just wondering what -- is that the grid map?
The --"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Yeah. Tommie, you want to discuss this, right?"
Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Let me tell you what I've provided you and

then --"

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "l really wasn't sure. I'd like to have a, just a, some kind
of discussion. On Thursday I'll be visiting about this with ECO, Eastern Counties
Organization, and | just would like to have us have a -- some kind of conversation about
it before | do that."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Okay, Linda, you want to --"

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "| was just going to tell you what | -- what is in
your packets. Because they're not labeled, it's a little difficult to tell. The packet that
has the pink down in the lower corner?"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Okay."
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Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Okay. This is some information | received from
Shirley Dye and at the back of those two maps is their proposal regarding basically
these legislative districts. The two maps are simply an overview of the entire state, and
the one underneath is some detail that's more pertinent to our particular area."
Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Okay."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "This is one proposal that is out there. Shirley
actually is up in Payson. | don't know if this has been submitted to the IRC or not, but |
do know it's a proposal that's out there.

The second set of maps, which are blue and green, are congressional district maps.
There's some justification at the back. | know this came from a Don. | don't know who
the Don is. It's just called Don's Arizona Map. This is another one | understand is out
there circulating.

The third one in your packet, | believe, is something from the Pinal County
Governmental Alliance on Congressional Districts. They have included statistics on --
their voter - their total population and their voting age minority population statistics with
their proposal.

And then the final maps are from the IRC. There's legislative and congressional in that
particular packet. My understanding, and consultants, you may know more than | do, is
these maps actually are not proposals. These are simply what they're referring to as
grid maps and the last page of that packet, what they say on their website is that the
Arizona Constitution mandates that redistricting begin with a grid map. This is to ensure
that each independent redistricting commission starts from scratch. But these grid
maps reflect only two of the six criteria the commissioners are required to consider.
Equal population and compactness and contiguousness or continuity. Basically they
haven't done anything with regard to Voting Rights Act, communities of interest, you
know, none of that has been discussed. So my thinking is these maps are probably not
very close to what's going to finally end up being proposed because they've got a lot of
work to do."

Consultant, Bruce: "Well, if | could address that briefly? | made a presentation to the
redistricting commission yesterday, and we spoke about, you know, many of the issues
that the redistricting commission is facing. | think your description is quite correct.
These are -- the grid maps are the very, very, early stages of what the commission is
working towards under the -- under state law. But, as you said, these -- the grid map
has nothing to do with the Voting Rights Act. And we talked a little bit about that
yesterday. | think the commission is very interested in hearing proposals and seeing
proposed maps, both congressional and legislative. At this point it is encouraging
people and organizations around the state to make proposals. There was an
organization that made a proposal yesterday. They're having another meeting, | think,
tomorrow -- or Thursday, I'm sorry, to — which will, in part, deal with entertaining
proposals. So yes, itis - if - | think it's important to realize that whatever maps you
have, or the grid maps from the commission are nowhere close to being what the actual
maps will be.

However, that being said, if people and organizations and counties want to make
proposals, | think now's certainly the time for that, and | would encourage you to contact
the commission today and ask the commission about its Thursday meeting, which |
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believe the chair designated, at least in part, to entertain and receive submissions,
proposals from the public."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Okay. Tommie?"

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "Bruce, is that this Thursday?"

Consultant, Bruce: "Yeah, Supervisor Martin, | believe it is. That's why | would
encourage you, if you're -- with the meeting that you mentioned, to contact the
commission today, ask them about the meeting. Because, as | recall, | think they were
considering holding the meeting in Casa Grande. So | would get in touch with them
today. Ray Boidine (phonetic) is the executive director. I'd encourage you to contact
him and ask him what the meeting schedule is."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "All right. And, Mr. Chair, we don't have to belabor this
right now, because | know these are very preliminary. | just thought - | will follow up on
the meeting on Thursday, but I'm thinking that, not today, but we need to put our heads
together as to what makes sense for us and we just -- we need to put, | think, some time
into those, the LD and the CD proposals that are going to start coming at us and filter
them through our filter of what's good for us. So again, | don't want to do it today, but |
think that fairly soon we need to have that discussion and get in a workshop. And I'm
not sure what the state's agenda is, and I'll get that too, as to where we are in their
process and how fast they're moving."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Why don't we wait and see what your response is going to
be for the Thursday meeting and then we can just call a special meeting some time next
week when we can all get together and then we could discuss it then, | would imagine.
Would that work?"

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "You bet."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Okay."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "Yes."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "That's kind of --"

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "|'ll get us information."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "All right. Okay."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "And when is the -- when's the ECO meeting?"
Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "lt's at 2:00."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "On Thursday?"

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "On Thursday. Yeah. So it could be some kind of
conflict. Let me just make sure of when the two are -- when what is and one of you may
need to run to Casa Grande."

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Well, these ideas "

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "Or | (indiscernible - simultaneous speech **6:03:08) --"
Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "-- the ideas of splitting Gila County into multiple
congressional districts | don't think helps Gila County at all, and "

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "The one that splits us into four just raised my hackles."
Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Yep."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "l could go with two. We've done two through
(indiscernible **6:03:29), and they've been together and not historically. Depends on --
philosophically it depends on how we're split. It might even be to our advantage to be
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able to pull in two senators and four reps rather than just the one senator and two reps
that we all keep going back to. But it would depend on how this looked."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Sure."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "And Shirley is telling me that the Casa Grande meeting
is at 9:00 so | may just make the 9:00 o'clock Casa Grande meeting on my way to the
ECO meeting at 2:00."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Okay. All right. So we'll wait to hear back from you
probably Friday some time, and then if we need --"

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "Go from there."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "-- yeah, we -- if we need to set a special meeting, we'll just
call a special meeting some time next week and --"

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "Okay. And I'll certainly get all the (indiscernible
**6:04:18) make part of that too."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Okay. All right."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Tommie, (indiscernible **6:04:20)."
Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Any comments up there, Tommie?"

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "The -- Shirley is telling me that the map you have with
the pink in the bottom right hand corner --"

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Yeah."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "l don't know if that one's been submitted."
Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "That's Camp Verde being added."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "That's a Camp Verde "

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "That one (indiscernible - simultaneous speech
**6:04:40)."

Unidentified Speaker: "No, just the MP5 part has been submitted. That takes up
Casa Grande."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Which is --"

Unidentified Speaker: "That's the orange map."

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "Yeah, the orange map."

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "Okay."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Okay. New one?"

Elections Director, Linda Eastlick: "The top piece just shows a larger section that --
well, it shows the whole state, whereas the orange is just -- it's narrowed down to our
area."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Okay. We've -- | know I've received some emails about
this proposal here, so --"

Supervisor, Shirley Dawson: "Uh-huh."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "-- I'm a little familiar with it, and Shirley says she's gotten
some emails on it oo, so we're aware of it and we're looking at them, and we'll review
all the rest of them, and we'll wait to hear back and decide on a meeting next week,
okay?"

Supervisor, Tommie Martin: "You got it, Mr. Chair. Thank you."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "Okay. With that, | don't think we -- we've concluded our
discussion on redistricting. Unless there's any final questions. If not, | would like to,
since it is 12:30 and I've been reminded that some people need to eat lunch, so we will
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recess and come back and do agenda item number 2 at 1:30. Or you want -- is it --
2:00 o'clock? It --"

Unidentified Speaker: "(Indiscernible - away from mic **6:05:55)."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "1:30. The county manager, I'm looking for him for a little
direction, so 1:30. He eats fast, so | guess we'll all have to go eat fast. So Tony and
Bruce, thanks for coming up and giving us all --"

Consultant, Bruce: Thank you.

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "-- this more information that -"

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "Very good."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "-- that we have to dig through. We appreciate it --"
Consultant, Bruce: "Thank you."

Supervisor, Mike Pastor: "-- and we look forward to your proposals at the next
meeting."

Consultant, Bruce: "Thank you, Mr. Chair."

Consultant, Tony Sisson: "We'll get busy."
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Work Session

Meeting Date: 08/23/2011

Submitted For: Linda Eastlick, Elections Submitted By: Linda Eastlick, Elections

Director Department
Department: Elections Department

Presenter's Name: Linda Eastlick

Information
Request/Subject

Gila County Supervisorial and Community College redistricting (NOTE -
attachments will be provided by August 15)

Background Information

The Gila County Elections staff, redistricting consultants and Redistricting
Advisory Committee have been working over the last several months to develop
mapping alternatives and ideas for the Board's consideration. The Committee
submitted their ideas to the Board of Supervisors on August 15, 2011. The next
step in the process is for the Board to review and discuss all ideas submitted by
staff, consultants, the committee, and the public during a work session.

Evaluation

It is proposed the Board review and discuss in detail all information provided by
the Elections staff, redistricting consultants, public comments, and the mapping
alternatives submitted by the Redistricting Advisory Committee. This review
should include in-depth discussions of the Redistricting Principles adopted by the
Board in April, pertinent voting pattern analyses including minority regression,
and other U. S. Department of Justice preclearance requirements.

Conclusion

The Board has the ultimate responsibility and authority to approve redistricting
plans for the County. Prior to making final decisions, the Board of Supervisors
can take this opportunity to consider all of the information provided by the
Redistricting Advisory Committee, hear input from staff and/or consultants, and
discuss redistricting alternatives.

Recommendation

The Elections Director recommends the Board discuss mapping alternatives,
consider all options, and hear comments during the work session.

Suggested Motion
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Presentation/Discussion regarding redistricting of Gila County supervisorial and
college districts and alternative redistricting maps. The Board may also discuss
alternative Arizona State redistricting plans. (Linda Eastlick)
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